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PRIME INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Regd. Office: Master Chamber, 19, Feroze Gandhi Market, Ludhiana-141001, Punjab 

CIN: L15490PB1992PLC012662 
[E-Mail: prime_indust@yahoo.com] 

[Website: www.primeindustrieslimited.com] [Tel No.s: 0161-3911500] 

 

NOTICE 
NOTICE is hereby given that the 27th Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be held on Monday, the 
30th day of September, 2019 at 12.00 Noon at 1st Floor, Building of Ludhiana Stock & Capital Ltd. (formerly Ludhiana 
Stock Exchange Ltd.) Feroze Gandhi Market, Ludhiana – 141001, Punjab, to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS:   
 
a) To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the period ending 31st March, 2019 together with the 

Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon. 
 
b) To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Harjeet Singh Arora (DIN: 00063176), who retires by rotation in terms of Section 

152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
c) To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 

without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 139, 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and other applicable provisions, if any, 

of the said Act and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 made thereunder and other applicable rules, if any, under the 
said Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) M/s. C.S. Arora & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 15130N), be and is hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of 
the Company for a period of 5 years, i.e. from the Financial Year 2019-20 till Financial Year 2023-24, commencing from 
the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 32nd Annual General Meeting at such remuneration as 
may be mutually agreed between the Audit Committee and/or Board of Directors of the Company and the Statutory Auditors.” 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

  
d) Re-appointment of Mr. Ashwani Kumar (DIN 00030307) as an Independent Director 
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152, 160 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, read with Schedule 
IV to the Act and Regulation 16, 17 and other applicable regulations of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as amended from time to time, Mr. 

Ashwani Kumar (DIN 00030307), who was appointed as an Independent Director the Annual General Meeting of the 
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Company held on 30th September, 2014 and who holds office up to 30th September, 2019 and who is eligible for 
re-appointment and who meets the criteria for independence and who has consented to act as an independent Director of the 
Company and pursuant to recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, be 
and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a second term of five consecutive years 
commencing from 1st October, 2019 upto 30th September, 2024.” 
 
e) Approval of Related Party Transactions 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Ordinary 
Resolution: 
  
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and any other                                               
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and of the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modifications, or 
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby given to the 
Board of Directors of the Company to enter into contracts and/or agreements with Related Parties (as per details mentioned in 
the Statement annexed to the notice) for availing and/or rendering of any services. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to determine the actual 
sums to be involved in the proposed transactions and the terms & conditions related thereto and all other matters arising out of 
or incidental to the proposed transactions and to do all acts, deeds, matters and things that may be necessary, proper or 
expedient thereto for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.” 
 
 
Place: Ludhiana 
Date: 14.08.2019  
 
 
Regd. Office : Master Chambers, 19, 
Feroze Gandhi Market,                                 
Ludhiana - 141001, Punjab  

 
By order of the Board 

For Prime Industries Limited 
 Sd/-  

(R.K. Singhania) 
Managing Director 

DIN - 00077540  
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NOTES: 
 
(i) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (THE "MEETING") IS 

ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND 
SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 

 
The proxy form, in order to be effective, must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the 
commencement of the meeting. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not 
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the 
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a 
proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

 
(ii) The relative Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of Special Businesses under Item 

No. 4 to be transacted at the Meeting, is annexed hereto. 
 
(iii) The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from, September 25, 2019 to September 30, 

2019 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting. 
 

 
(iv) Since, the Company’s shares are in compulsory demat trading, to ensure better services, and elimination of risk of holding 

shares in physical form, we request our shareholders holding shares in physical form to dematerialize their shares. 
 

(v) Any queries regarding the Annual Accounts or otherwise must be sent to Registered Office of the Company at least 10 days before the 
date of the meeting. 

 
(vi) Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the 

Company on all working days during office hours upto the date of the Annual General Meeting. 
 

(vii) Nomination facility is available to the members in respect of shares held by them. Members holding Shares in physical form may 
obtain the nomination forms from the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. Members holding Shares in electronic form may 
obtain the nomination form from their respective Depository Participants. 

 
(viii) Electronic copy of the notice along with the Annual Report is being sent to all members whose E-mail IDs are registered with the 

Company/Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes unless any member has requested for hard copy of the same. For 
members who have not been registered their email address, physical copies of the Annual Report are being sent to them. 

 
(ix) Voting through electronic means: 
 
a)  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the amended Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to provide its members the facility to exercise their right to vote at the 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services provided by 
Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL).  

 
b)  A member may exercise his vote by electronic means and Company may pass any resolution by electronic voting system in 

accordance with the Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended. 
 
c)  During the period when facility for remote e-voting is provided, the members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form 

or dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 20.09.2019, may opt for remote e-voting. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL 
for voting thereafter. 

 
d)  The e-voting period commences at 9:30 a.m. on Thursday, 26 th September, 2019 and ends at 5:00 p.m. on Sunday, 29th September, 

2019. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 
 
e)  Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the shareholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed to change it subsequently or cast the vote 

again. 
 
f)  Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the members as on the cut-off date for the 

purpose of E-voting i.e. 20th September, 2019. 
 
g)  The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 14.08.2019 has appointed Mr. Rajeev Bhambri, Practicing Company Secretary (M. 
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No. FCS 4327) as the scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process (including the Ballot forms received from members not having 
access to E-voting process) in a fair and transparent manner. 

h)  Instructions for e-voting: 

(i) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com during the voting period 

(ii) Click on “Shareholders” tab. 

(iii) Select the “Prime Industries Limited” from the drop down menu and click on submit 

(iii) Now enter your User ID 

 
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the   Company. Next enter the Verification 
Code as displayed and Click on Login.  

 
(iv) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
 
(v) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and casted your vote earlier for any 

company/entity, then your existing password is to be used. 
 
(vi) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 
 

 
    (vii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 
    (viii) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the EVSN selection screen. However, members holding shares in 

demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new 
password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on 
which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share 
your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

 
    (ix) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

 
    (x) Click on the EVSN – 190826021 for Prime Industries Limited on which you choose to vote. 

 
    (xi) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the 

option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the 
Resolution. 
 

    (xii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 
 

  For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat 
shareholders as well as physical shareholders)  

 Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are 
requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the 
PAN field. 

 
 In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s before the 

number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is 
BALWANT SINGH with sequence number 1 then enter BA00000001 in the PAN field.  

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for the said demat 
account in dd/mm/yyyy format. 

Dividend Bank 
Details 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for the said 
demat account or folio. 

 Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. In case both the details are not 
recorded with the depository and company please enter the member id/folio number in the 
Dividend Bank details field. 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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  (xiii) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to 
confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 
 

  (xiv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
 

  (xv) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page. 
 

  (xvi) If demat account holder has forgotten the same password then enter the User ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot 
Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 

 
  (xvii) Note for Non-Individual Shareholders and custodians 

 
a) Non – Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF and NRI etc.) and custodian are required to log on to 

https://www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as “Corporates”. 

 
b) A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 
 
c) After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance user 

would be able to link the account(s) which they wish to vote on and cast their vote on. 
 
d) The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast 

their vote. 
 
e) A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, 

should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 
 

  (xviii) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting 
manual available at www.evotingindia.co.in under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 
  (xix) Pursuant to Section 107 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, there will not be 

voting by show of hands on any of the agenda items at the Meeting and poll will be conducted in lieu thereof. 
 
  Note: Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice and holds shares 

as on the cut-off date i.e. 20th September, 2019 may follow the same instructions as mentioned above for e-Voting. 
 
(x) Members who do not have access to e-voting facility. 
 
Those members who do not have access to the E-voting Facility may send duly completed Ballot Form (enclosed with the Notice) so as to 
reach the Scrutinizer appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Rajeev Bhambri, Practicing Company Secretary (M.No. FCS 
4327) at SCO No. 9, Jandu Tower, Miller Ganj, Ludhiana, Punjab - 141003 not later than 29th September, 2019 (5.00 p.m. IST). 
 
Ballot Form received after this date will be treated as invalid. 
 
A Member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through e-voting or by Ballot. If a Member casts votes by both modes, then voting 
done through e-voting shall prevail and Ballot shall be treated as invalid. 
 
(xi) Members are requested to carefully read the instructions and in case of any queries, you may refer to the Q & A on e-Voting for 

Members and User Manual for Shareholders to cast their votes available in the help section of www.evotingindia.com  
 

(xii) The facility for voting, through ballot paper shall also be made available at the venue of the 27th AGM. The members attending the 
meeting, who have not already cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their voting rights at the meeting. The 
members who have already cast their vote through remote e-voting may attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote 
again at the AGM. 

 
(xiii) The Scrutinizer, appointed by the Board of Directors to scrutinize the e-voting  process in a fair and transparent manner, shall within 

a period of not exceeding three  (3) working days from the conclusion of the e-Voting period unlock the votes in the  presence of 
at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company and  make a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast 
in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company. 

 
a)  The Results shall be declared on the Annual General Meeting of the Company. The Results declared along with the 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.evotingindia.co.in/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com./
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Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.primeindustrieslimited.com and www.evotingindia.com 
immediately after the result is declared by the chairman. The results shall also forwarded to the concerned stock exchange where its 
equity shares are listed. 

 
(xiv) Pursuant to Rule 18 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, your Company is allowed to send the Notice of 

General Meetings through electronic mode to their Members. The Members are requested to support this initiative of paperless 
compliance by registering/updating their e-mail addresses with : 

(a) Depository Participant (in case of shares held in dematerialised form) or     
(b) Registrar & Transfer Agent- Skyline Financial Services (P)  Ltd,  New  Delhi  by  sending  an  E-mail  to  

admin@skylinerta.com  or  with  the    Company at prime_indust@yahoo.com (in case of shares held in physical form). 
 
(xv) The Notice & Annual Report of the Company circulated to the members, will  also be made available on the Company’s 

website at www.primeindustrieslimited.com    
 
(xvi) Information required to be provided under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 , regarding the Directors who are proposed to 

be appointed/ re-appointed is as below:- 
 

Name of the Director Harjeet Singh Arora 

Age (years) 66 years 

Qualification CA, CS 

Expertise Mr. Harjeet Singh Arora has over 35 years of experience in Corporate 
Financial Advisory Services. He has been involved in many merchant 
banking and investment banking mandates of top corporates of India. 

Directorship held in other 
Companies 

 16 
 

Chairmanships / 
Memberships of Committees of other   public 
companies 

Chairmanship: 1 
Membership: 1   
  

Shares held in the Company  66,951 

Relationship with  
other Director(s) 

Mr. Harjeet Singh Arora is the spouse of Mrs. Harneesh Kaur Arora. No 
other Director is related to Mr. Harjeet Singh Arora. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.primeindustrieslimited.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.primeindustrieslimited.com/
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT TO THE NOTICE 
 

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 the following Explanatory Statement sets out the material facts relating to the 
businesses under Item No. 4 accompanying the Notice dated 14.08.2019. 
 
Item No.4 
Based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors proposes the re-appointment of Mr. 
Ashwani Kumar (DIN 00030307) as Independent Director, for a second term of five years from 01st October, 2019 to 30th September, 2024, 
not liable to retire by rotation.  
 
Mr. Ashwani Kumar was appointed as Independent Director at the 22nd Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company and holds office 

up to 30th September, 2019.  
 
The Board, based on the performance evaluation and recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, considers that given his 
background, experience and contribution, the continued association of Mr. Ashwani Kumar would be beneficial to the Company and it is 
desirable to continue to avail his services as Independent Director.  
 
The Company has received a declaration from him to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of 
the Act and Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”).  
 
In the opinion of the Board, he fulfills the conditions specified in the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations for appointment as an Independent 
Director and is independent of the management of the Company. The terms and conditions of his appointment shall be open for inspection 
by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during the normal business hours on any working day (except Saturday) and will 
also be kept open at the venue of the AGM till the conclusion of the AGM. 
 
Consent of the Members by way of Special Resolution is required for re-appointment Mr. Ashwani Kumar in terms of Section 149 of the 
Act.  
 
Other than Mr. Ashwani Kumar, and his relatives, to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company, none of the other 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned or interested financially or otherwise, in passing the 
resolution set out at item no. 4. 
 
The Board recommends the Special Resolution for your approval. 
 
Item No.5 
 
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time, requires the approval of the members by way of a prior Ordinary 
resolution for specified transactions beyond threshold limits with Related Parties.  
 
Further, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 prescribes that all material related party transactions to 
require approval of the shareholders through special resolution. SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
defines a transaction with a related party to be considered material if the transaction / transactions to be entered into individually or taken 
together with previous transactions during a financial year, exceeds ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover the company as per the 
last audited financial statements of the company. 

 
Your Company from time to time renders and avails various services which may also include credit facilities from/to such Related Parties. 
Since, the transaction value for such services may exceed the prescribed threshold limits as prescribed under Sec 188 of the Act and the 
Rules made thereunder, therefore, as a matter of abundant precaution, the proposal is being put before the members of the Company for 
their approval. 
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The disclosures required to be provided under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with as amended Companies (Meetings of 
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are given herein below for perusal of the members. 

 

 
Sr. 
No. 

 
Name of the 
related party 

 
Name of the director or key managerial personnel 
who is related, if any. 

 
Nature of relationship 

Subsidiaries/Wholly Owned Subsidiaries 

1 Master   Capital   
Services Limited. 

None of the Directors or Key managerial personnel is 
related except to the extent of their directorship in the 
associate company. 
 

As may be decided by the Board of 
Directors at relevant time. 

2 Master Commodity 
Services Limited 

None of the Directors or Key managerial personnel is 
related except to the extent of their directorship in the 
associate company. 

3 Master Infrastructure  and 
Real Estate   Developers 
Limited 

None of the Directors or Key managerial personnel is 
related except to the extent of their directorship in the 
associate company. 

4 Master Trust Limited Mr. Harjeet Singh Arora and Mr. Rajinder Kumar 
Singhania hold shares in Master Trust Limited. 

5 Bigbuild Real Estate Private 
Ltd. 

Mr.  Harjeet Singh Arora and  Mr. Rajinder Kumar 
Singhania are directors and shareholders in Bigbuild 
Real Estate  Private Ltd. 

Nature,   material   terms,   monetary   value particulars of the contract or arrangement. Nil 

Any other information relevant or important for the members  to  take  a  decision  on  
the  proposed resolution 

 

 
 
Place: Ludhiana 
Date: 14.08.2019  
 
Regd. Office : Master Chambers, 
19, Feroze Gandhi Market,         
Ludhiana - 141001, Punjab                              

 By order of the Board 
For Prime Industries Limited 

 
Sd/- 

(R.K. Singhania)  
Managing Director 

DIN - 00077540 
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Route map for reaching Building of Ludhiana Stock & Capital Ltd. (Place of AGM) from Bharat Nagar Chowk, 
Ludhiana 
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PRIME INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Regd. Office: Master Chamber, 19, Feroze Gandhi Market, Ludhiana-141001, Punjab 

CIN: L15490PB1992PLC012662 
[E-Mail: prime_indust@yahoo.com] 

[Website: www.primeindustrieslimited.com/] [Tel Nos: 0161-3911500] 
 

Proxy form 
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 

2014] 
 

Name of the member (s) :  
Registered address: 
 

 E-mail Id :  
Folio No/ Client Id:  
DP ID:  
 

 

 
I/We, being the member (s) of …………. shares of Prime Industries Limited, hereby appoint  
 
1. Name: ………………………………………………………………………………..…  
 
Address: ………………………………………………………………………………..… 
E-mail Id: …………………..…………………………………………………………….. 
Signature:……………., or failing him/her  
 
 
2. Name: ………………………………………………………………………………..… 
 
Address: ………………………………………………………………………………..… 
E-mail Id: ………………………………………………………………………………..… 
Signature:……………., or failing him/her 
 
 
3. Name: ………………………………………………………………………………..… 
 
Address: ………………………………………………………………………………..… 
E-mail Id: ……………………………………………………………………………….… 
Signature:……………. or failing him/her 
 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 27th Annual General Meeting of the company, to be 
held on Monday, the 30th day of September, 2019 at 12.00 Noon at 1st Floor, Building of Ludhiana Stock & Capital Ltd. (formerly 
Ludhiana Stock Exchange Ltd.) Feroze Gandhi Market, Ludhiana – 141001, Punjab and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such 
resolutions set out in the Notice convening the meeting, as are indicated below:  
 
Item  
No. 
 

Resolution 
Type 

Description I / We assent to 
the resolution 
(For) 

I / We dissent 
to the resolution 
(Against) 

1. Ordinary Adoption of the audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2019 and the reports of the Board of Directors and 
Auditors thereon. 

  

2. Ordinary Re-Appointment of Mr. Harjeet Singh Arora (DIN: 00063176), 
who retires by rotation and being eligible, seeks 
re-appointment. 

  

3. Ordinary Appointment of the Statutory Auditors of the Company   

4. Special Re-appointment of Mr. Ashwani Kumar (DIN 00030307) as an 
Independent Director 

  

5. Ordinary Approval of Related Party Transactions.   
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Signed this…… day of………….20….  

Signature of shareholder ……...……………………………..      

Signature of Proxy holder(s) ………………………………..   

 
Note:  

 This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.  

 A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.  

 A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of 
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share 
capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a 
proxy for any other person or shareholder.  

 Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes.  

 In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint holders should be 
stated. 

 The member has the option of indicating the manner in which the vote be cast. This is only optional. If the member leaves 
the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, the Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as 

he/she thinks appropriate. 

 
 
 

Revenue Stamp 
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PRIME INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Regd. Office: Master Chamber, 19, Feroze Gandhi Market, Ludhiana-141001, Punjab 

CIN: L15490PB1992PLC012662 
[E-Mail: prime_indust@yahoo.com] 

[Website: www.primeindustrieslimited.com/] [Tel Nos: 0161-3911500] 
 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
(Please complete and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall.) 

(Only Members or their Proxies are entitled to be present at the Meeting) 
 
Folio No.________________      Client ID/DPID* ________________ 
 
 
Name of Shareholder/Joint Shareholder/Proxy  _____________________________________________ 
 
 
Address  _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
No. of Shares held_____________           
 
I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 27th Annual General Meeting held on Monday, the 30th day of September 2019, at 12.00 
Noon at 1st Floor, Building of Ludhiana Stock & Capital Ltd. (formerly Ludhiana Stock Exchange Ltd.) Feroze Gandhi Market, 
Ludhiana – 141001, Punjab 
 
 
SIGNATURE OF THE MEMBER(S)/PROXY(S) PRESENT  
 
 
____________________________________________________ 
 
*Applicable to investors holding shares in electronic form only  
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PRIME INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Regd. Office: Master Chamber, 19, Feroze Gandhi Market, Ludhiana-141001, Punjab 

CIN: L15490PB1992PLC012662 
[E-Mail: prime_indust@yahoo.com] 

[Website: www.primeindustrieslimited.com/] [Tel Nos: 0161-3911500] 
 

BALLOT FORM 
(To be returned to Scrutinizer appointed by Prime Industries Limited)  

 
1. Name(s) of Member(s): 
(including joint-holders, if any) ______________________________________________ 
 
2. Registered Folio No. / : 
DPID No. / Client ID No.*__________________________________________________ 
 
(*Applicable to Members holding shares in dematerialised form) 
 
3. I/We hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the Ordinary Resolution(s) / Special Resolution(s) as specified in the Notice dated 
14.08.2019 to be passed through Ballot for the business stated in the said Notice by conveying my/our assent or dissent to the said 
resolution in the relevant box below: 

 
Item  
No. 
 

Resolution 
Type 

Description I / We assent to 
the resolution 
(For) 

I / We dissent 
to the resolution 
(Against) 

1. Ordinary Adoption of the audited Financial Statements for the year 
ended March 31, 2019 and the reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon. 

  

2. Ordinary Re-Appointment of Mr. Harjeet Singh Arora (DIN: 00063176), 
who retires by rotation and being eligible, seeks 
re-appointment. 

  

3. Ordinary Appointment of the Statutory Auditors of the Company   

4. Special Re-appointment of Mr. Ashwani Kumar (DIN 00030307) as 
an Independent Director 

  

5. Ordinary Approval of Related Party Transactions.   
 
Place : 
Date :  

________________________________ 
Signature of Member / Beneficial Owner 

E-Mail        __________________ 
Tel. No.      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 PRIME INDUSTRIES LTD  

 
 
 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 
 

15 
 

 
 
 
 

PRIME INDUSTRIES LIMITED  
 

To, 
The Members, 
 
The Directors of Prime Industries Limited (PIL) have great pleasure in presenting their 27th Annual Report of the 
company together with the audited statements of accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 along with report 
of the Statutory Auditors thereon. 
 

1.  Financial summary of the Company  
 
The summary of financial results of the Company for the period ended 31st March, 2019 is as under: 

(Rs. In Lakh)  
PARTICULARS Figures for the year ended 31st March, 

2019 
Figures for the year ended 31st 
March, 2018 

Total Revenue 84.94 114.55 
Total Expenses 73.93 104.26 
Profit Before Tax 11.01 10.29 
Tax Expense 00.52 01.80 
Profit For The Period 10.49 08.49 

 
2.   Management Discussion & Analysis 
 
    During the year under review, your Company has registered gross operating & other income of Rs. 84.94 Lakh as 

compared to Rs. 114.55 Lakh in previous year. 
 
3.  Dividend 

 
Keeping in view the present economic situations, the board recommends retaining the earnings in the Company; hence, 
the Board has not recommended any dividend on the equity share capital of the Company. 
 

4.  Reserves 
 
No amount is being transferred to reserve & surplus in the current year. 
 

5.  Brief description of the Company’s working during the year. 
 

In this year of its operations, i.e. FY 2018-19, your company’s revenue during the year under review decreased to Rs. 
84.94 Lakh as compared to Rs. 114.55 Lakh in previous year. Your company’s Net Profit after tax is Rs. 10.49 Lakh as 
compared to Rs. 8.49 Lakh in the previous year.  
 

6.  Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company which have occurred 
between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the 
report. 
 
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred between the end of 
the financial year to which the Financial Statements relate and the date of the Report. 
 

7.  Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status 
and company’s operations in future. 
 
During the year under review no significant and material orders have been passed by the Regulators / Courts that would 
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 
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8.  Adequacy of Internal Control.  
 
The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal control, to ensure that all assets are safeguarded, properly 
utilized and protected against loss from un-authorized use or disposition and those transactions are authorized and 
recorded by the concerned departments properly and reported to the Audit Committee/Board correctly. 
 
The Company has also in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Such controls 
are tested from time to time and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation has been observed so far. 
 

9.  Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies. 
 

The Company did not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company during the year under review. 
 

10.  Deposits. 
 
The Company has not accepted any public deposits pursuant to the provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made there under and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest on Pubic Deposits was 
outstanding on the date of the Balance Sheet. 
 

11.  Auditors 
 
(a) Statutory Auditors 
 
M/s. Sukhminder Singh & Co., Chartered Accountants, were appointed previously as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company for a period of 2 years, from the conclusion of the 25th AGM of the Company till the conclusion of 27th AGM 
of the Company. 
 
The tenure of M/s. Sukhminder Singh & Co., Chartered Accountants has now expired.  
 
Consequently, The Board on recommendation of the Audit Committee recommends the appointment of M/s. C.S. Arora 
& Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 15130N) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a 
period of Five Years from Financial Year 2019-20 upto Financial Year 2023-24, subject to the approval by the members 
of the Company at the 27th AGM. 

 
The Auditor has furnished a certificate to the effect that their appointment, if made, at the ensuing AGM, will be within 
the limits prescribed under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not beneficially holding any 
security or interest in the Company as defined under Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Members are requested to consider confirming Statutory Auditor’s appointment and authorizing the Board of Directors to 
fix their remuneration. 
 
(b) Secretarial Auditors and Secretarial Audit Report 

 
Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013, your Company has appointed M/s Rajeev Bhambri & Associates, 
Company Secretaries in practice, Ludhiana as its Secretarial Auditors to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for 
the FY 2018-19 and also for 2019-20. The Company provided all assistance and facilities to the Secretarial Auditor for 
conducting their audit. The Report of Secretarial Auditor for the FY 2018-19 is annexed to this report. There are no 
qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made in the Audit Report. 
 

12.  Auditors’ Report 
 
M/s Sukhminder Singh & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company, have audited the accounts of 
the Company for the year 2018-19 and their Report is annexed. Pursuant to Section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Statutory Auditors have also reported on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting, which has been enclosed as ‘Annexure’ to Independent Auditor’s Report. Significant 
Audit observations, if any, and corrective actions taken by the Management are presented to the Audit Committee of the 
Board from time to time. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made in the 
Auditor’s Report. 
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13.  Extract of the annual return 
 

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9, as required under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, forms an integral part of Board Report. Form MGT-9 is available on the website of the Company 
and can be accessed at https://www.primeindustrieslimited.com/mgt-9-2018-19.pdf 
 

14.  Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
 

Information with respect to Conservation of energy, technology, absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo 

pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not 

applicable because there are no manufacturing activities in the Company. 

 
15.  Directors & Key Managerial Personnel 

 
The Company’s Board comprised six Directors as on March 31, 2019, viz., Mr. Rajinder Kumar Singhania, Managing 
Director (Promoter), Mr. Harjeet Singh Arora, Non-Executive Director, Mrs. Parveen Singhania, Non-Executive Woman 
Director / Promoter, Mr. Darshanjit Singh Minocha, Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director, and two Independent 
Directors Mr. Ashwani Kumar and Mr. Rajiv Kalra. 
  
The Board, therefore, presently comprises of six Directors. 
 

(c) Statement on Declaration by Independent Directors 
 
The Company has received declaration from each independent director under Section 149(7) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing 

Regulations’), that they meet the criteria of independence laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing 
Regulations. 
 
The Independent Directors have complied with the Code for Independent Directors. 
 
In terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and based on the 
Declarations received by the Company under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 the following 
Non-Executive Directors are identified as Independent Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2019:  
 

i) Mr. Ashwani Kumar 
ii) Mr. Rajiv Kalra  

 
(d) Appointment / Re-appointment / Resignation / Retirement of Directors. 

 
In order to ensure compliance with Section 152(6) of the Act, the Board has considered Mr. Harjeet Singh Arora, 
Director, being longest in office, shall retire at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, offers himself for 
re-appointment, for ensuring compliance with Section 152(6) of Act. 

 
Relevant details, including brief profile of the Director seeking appointment / re-appointment at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting, have been furnished in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting. 
 
Mr. Ashwani Kumar (DIN 00030307), who was appointed as an Independent Director in the Annual General 
Meeting of the Company held on 30th September, 2014 and who holds office up to 30th September, 2019 and 
who is eligible for re-appointment. Pursuant to recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and the Board of Directors Mr. Ashwani Kumar to be re-appointed as an Independent Director of the 
Company for a second term of five consecutive years commencing from 1st October, 2019 upto 30th September, 
2024 by the members in the 27th AGM. 
 
Ms. Sharon Arora resigned from the position of Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 19.05.2018 and Ms. 
Jasleen Kaur Bath was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 30.05.2018 
 
There were no other appointments/Resignations of Directors/Key Managerial Personnel during the Financial 
Year 2018-19. 

https://www.primeindustrieslimited.com/mgt-9-2018-19.pdf
http://taxguru.in/company-law/companies-act-2013-companies-accounts-rules-2014.html
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(e) Remuneration to Directors/Employees and related analysis. 

  
During the year under review, no employee of the Company received salary in excess of the limits as prescribed 
under the Act. Accordingly, no particulars of employees are being given pursuant to Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014.  

 
The details pertaining to the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration 

and other prescribed details as required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(1) of 
the Companies (Appointment And Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are annexed herewith 
and forms part of the Directors' Report. 

 
 

(f) Key Managerial Personnel 
 

Mr. Rajinder Kumar Singhania, Managing Director, Mr. Kashmir Singh, Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Jasleen 
Kaur Bath, Company Secretary of the Company are the Key Managerial Personnel as per the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.  

  
16.  Number of meetings of the Board of Directors  

 
The board meetings are convened by giving appropriate notice after obtaining the approval of the Managing Director. 
The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the results and other items on the agenda, once a year for on the 
occasion of the annual shareholders’ meeting. When necessary, additional meetings are held. 
 
The agenda of the board meetings is drafted by the Company Secretary along with the explanatory notes and these are 
distributed in advance to the directors. Every Board member is free to suggest the inclusion of items on the agenda. The 
agenda papers are prepared by the concerned officials of the respective department and are approved by the Managing 
Director. Agenda papers are circulated to the Board by the Company Secretary. Additional items on the agenda are 
permitted with the permission of the Chairman. All divisions/departments in the Company are encouraged to plan their 
functions well in advance, particularly with regard to matters requiring discussion/ approval/ decision in the board/ 
committee meetings. 
 
All such matters are communicated to the Company Secretary in advance so that the same could be included in the 
agenda for the board meetings. 
 
The Board also passes resolutions by circulation on need basis.  
 
Minutes of the proceedings of the board meeting are prepared within 48 hours of the meeting. Draft minutes are 
circulated to the Chairman for his comments. The minutes of all the Committees of the Board of Directors of the 
Company are placed before the Board. 
 
The quarterly, half-yearly and the annual results are first placed before the Audit Committee of the Company and 
thereafter the same are placed before the Board of Directors. 
 
Regular meetings of the Board are held to discuss and decide on various business policies, strategies and other businesses. 
Due to business exigencies, certain business decisions are taken by the Board through circulation from time to time. 
 
The Board met four (4) times during the FY 2018-19 viz. on 30.05.2018, 14.08.2018, 14.11.2018 and 14.02.2019. 
 

17.  Committees of the Board 
 

The Company has several Committees which have been established as a part of the best corporate governance practices 
and are in compliance with the requirements of the relevant provisions of applicable laws and statutes. 
 
The Company has following Committees of the Board: 
 

 Audit Committee 
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To ensure the composition & independence of the Committee as per the Companies Act, 2013, the Audit 
Committee’s composition and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions of Section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations.  
 
Audit Committee is comprised of two Non- Executive Independent Directors and one Non-Executive/ 
Non-Independent Director viz. Mr. Ashwani Kumar (Non- Executive/Independent Director) Mr. Rajiv Kalra 
(Non- Executive/Independent Director) and Mr. Harjeet Singh Arora (Non- Executive/Non-Independent 
Director). All the Members of Audit Committee are financially literate and have accounting knowledge to 
interpret and understand the financial statements. Mr. Ashwani Kumar is re-confirmed to be the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee.  
 
The Audit Committee meetings were held at the Registered Office of the Company and Statutory Auditor, 
Company Secretary and Head of Accounts Department are permanent invitees to the meetings. The Company 
Secretary of the Company acts as the secretary of the Committee. During the year Audit Committee members, 
met four (4) times on 30.05.2018, 14.08.2018, 14.11.2018 and 14.02.2019. 
 
 

 
 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 
Committee is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations, read with 
Section 178 of the Act. 

 
‘The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. Ashwani Kumar (Chairman), Mr. Harjeet 
Singh Arora and Mr. Rajiv Kalra. 
 
Policy on Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel & senior employees is annexed herewith 
and forms the part of Board Report. Policy is also available on the website of the Company and can be accessed 
at http://www.primeindustrieslimited.com/nomination%20&%20remuneration%20PIL.pdf 
 
One nomination and remuneration committee meeting was held during the year on 30.05.2018 
 

 Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
 
The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 20 of SEBI 
Listing Regulations read with section 178 of the Act. 
 
The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of Board (SRC) comprises Mr. Harjeet Singh Arora (Chairman) and 
Mr. Darshan Jit Singh Minocha (Member). SRC monitors redressal of complaints received from shareholders/ 
investors with respect to transfer of shares, non-receipt of dividend, non-receipt of Annual Reports, interest 
payment on Bonds, etc. SRC also takes note of number of transfers processed, issue of fresh share certificates, 
top shareholders, pattern of 30 shareholding, etc.  
 
During the FY 2018-19, no complaints were received. There was no complaint outstanding as on 31st March, 
2019. Also, no instruments of transfer were pending as on 31st March, 2019. The Company Secretary is the 
Compliance Officer of the Committee. The Committee meets as and when required, to deal with the investor 
related matters etc 

 
One stakeholders' relationship committee meeting was held during the year on. 30.05.2018 

 
18.  Listing / De-listing of Shares  
 

The Shares of your Company are presently listed on The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai (BSE) and the 
Annual Listing Fees for the year 2019-20 has already been paid to it. 
 

19.  Details of establishment of vigil mechanism for directors and employees  
 
The Company has implemented a Whistle Blower Policy pursuant to which Whistle Blowers can raise concerns relating 
to Reportable Matters (as defined in the policy) such as breach of Company's Code of Conduct. Further, the mechanism 
adopted by the Company encourages the Whistle Blower to report genuine concerns or grievances and provides for 

http://www.primeindustrieslimited.com/nomination%20&%20remuneration%20PIL.pdf
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adequate safeguards against victimization of Whistle Blower who avail of such mechanism and also provides for direct 
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, in exceptional cases. The functioning of the Vigil mechanism is 
reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time. The details of the Whistle Blower Policy are explained in the 
Report on Corporate Governance and also available on the website of the Company and can be accessed at 
http://www.primeindustrieslimited.com/PIL%20WHISTLE%20BLOWER.pdf. 
 

20.  Familiarization programme for Independent Directors. 
 
The Board members are provided with necessary documents/brochures, reports and internal policies to enable them to 
familiarize with the Company’s procedures and practices. The details of such familiarization programmes for 
Independent Directors are posted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at 
http://www.primeindustrieslimited.com/FAMILARISATION_PROGRAMME_PIL(1).pdf  
 

21.  Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186 
 
During the year under review, the company has not given any loan, guarantee, provided security to any person or other 
body corporate or acquired by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate, 
exceeding the limits prescribed under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

22.  Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:  
 

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in 
the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company had not entered into any 

contract / arrangement / transaction with related parties which could be considered material in accordance with the policy 
of the Company on materiality of related party transactions. 
 
The Policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party transactions as approved by the 
Board may be accessed on the Company’s website at the 

link:http://www.primeindustrieslimited.com/Policy%20on%20related%20party%20-PIL.pdf 
 
Your Directors draw attention of the members to Note 23 to the financial statement which sets out related party 
disclosures. 
 

23.  Insider Trading Regulations. 
 
Based on the requirements under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to 
time, the Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information ("Code of 
Fair Disclosure") and the Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by employees and other connected 
persons ("Code of Conduct") as approved by the Board on 14.05.2015 are in force by the Company. The objective of this 
Code is to protect the interest of shareholders at large, to prevent misuse of any price sensitive information and to prevent 
any insider trading activity by dealing in shares of the Company by its Directors, Designated employees and Specified 
Persons. The Company also adopts the concept of Trading Window Closure, to prevent its Directors, Designated 
employees and Specified Persons from trading in the securities of the Company at the time when there is unpublished 
price sensitive information.  
  

24.  Risk management policy 
 
The Company has adopted Risk Management Policy which has been approved by the board of Directors of the Company. 
The aim of the Risk Management Policy is to maximize opportunities in all activities and to minimize adversity. The 
policy includes identifying types of risks and its assessment, risk handling and monitoring and reporting, which in the 
opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company. 
 
The Risk Management policy may be accessed on the Company’s website at the link: 
http://primeindustrieslimited.com/Risk%20management%20policy%20-%20PIL.pdf 
 

25.  Human Resources Development 
 
Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of its most important assets. 
Your Company continuously invests in attraction, retention and development of talent on an ongoing basis. The relations 
at all levels of the Company have remained very cordial throughout the year.  

http://www.primeindustrieslimited.com/PIL%20WHISTLE%20BLOWER.pdf
http://www.primeindustrieslimited.com/FAMILARISATION_PROGRAMME_PIL(1).pdf
http://www.primeindustrieslimited.com/Policy%20on%20related%20party%20-PIL.pdf
http://primeindustrieslimited.com/Risk%20management%20policy%20-%20PIL.pdf
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26.  Corporate Governance Certificate  

 
The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and adhere to the corporate 
governance requirements set out by SEBI. However, since the Company does not fulfill the criteria mentioned in 
Regulation 15(2)(a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the compliances with 
regard to corporate governance provisions are not applicable to the Company. 
 

27.  Corporate Social Responsibility 
 

The provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable on the Company. 
  

28.  Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women   at Workplace 
 
The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at the workplace, and has adopted a ‘Policy on Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace’, in line with the provisions of the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. 
The Policy aims to provide protection to women employees at the workplace and prevent and redress complaints of 
sexual harassment and for matters connected or incidental thereto, with the objective of providing a safe working 
environment. 
 

29.  Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
 
The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 
2013, shall state that— 
 
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper 

explanation relating to material departures; 
 
b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of 
the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period; 

 
c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities; 

 
d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 
 
e) the directors had  devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 

such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

30.  Board Evaluation 
 
The Board of Directors of your Company recognizes and accepts that Boards are accountable to the public to ensure that 
they are operating in an effective manner. Care is taken to avoid that the Board does not fall into the "same old way of 
doing things". Therefore, one of the few ways to identify and address the problem is for the Board to conduct a 
self-evaluation. 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has approved the Annual Evaluation Plan for the Board, 
Committees and Individual Directors. The Board including its committees and members shall evalute itself once a year, 
whether there are apparent major problems or not. Each member of the Board shall complete a form which comprises of 
objective questions on certain parameters such as their own roles and responsibilities in the Company, Strategic 
Leadership, Accountability, Board Processes and Board Performance. The responses shall be discussed among members 
of Board, Committees and at Individual level. The exercise shall be led by the Chairman alongwith a Senior Independent 
Director of the Company. 
 
The results of the Evaluation shall be shared with the Board, Chairman of respective Committees and individual Director 
Based on the outcome of the Evaluation, the Board and Committees shall agree on the action plan to improve on the 
identified parameter. The evaluation in terms of the plan has been completed during the period under review. 
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(POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL & SENIOR 
EMPLOYEES) 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Prime Industries Limited (hereinafter referred as the ‘Company’) practices a corporate culture that is based on the tenets 
of trusteeship, empowerment, accountability, control and ethical practices with transparency at its core for creation of 
maximum value for the stakeholders. 
 
BRIEF OVERVIEW UNDER COMPANIES ACT 2013 
{Section 178 & Companies [Meetings of Board and its Powers] Rules 2014} 
 
• Constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consisting of three or more non-executive directors out 
of which not less than one-half shall be independent directors. 
 
• The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who 
may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their 
appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance. 
 
• The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the 
directors, key managerial personnel and senior management personnel i.e. employees at one level below the Board 
including functional heads. 
 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 
 
This Nomination and Remuneration Policy is being formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Regulation 19 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). This policy on nomination 
and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management has been formulated by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC or the Committee) and has been approved by the Board of Directors in 
its meeting held on 14th day of November 2014. 

Definitions 

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him and 
includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961; 
 

“Key Managerial Personnel” means”: 

 
(i) Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-time Director; 
 
(ii) Chief Financial Officer; 
 
(iii) Company Secretary;  
 
(iv) such other officer, not more than one level below the directors who is in whole-time employment, designated as key 
managerial personnel by the Board; 
  
(v) and such other officer as may be prescribed; 
 
“Senior Managerial Personnel” means the personnel of the company who are members of its core management team 
excluding Board of Directors. Normally, this would comprise all members of management of rank equivalent to General 
Manager and above, including all functional heads. 
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Objective 
 
The objective of the policy is to ensure that:- 
 
• the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the 
quality required to run the company successfully; 
 
• relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and 
 
• remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed and 
incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its 
goals. 
 
Role of the Committee 
 
The role of the NRC will be the following: 
 
• To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director. 
 
• To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board. 
 
• To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy. 
 
• To carry out evaluation of Director’s performance. 
 
•To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors, KMP and Senior Management. 
 
• To devise a policy on Board diversity, composition and size. 
 
• Succession planning for replacing Key Executives and overseeing their orientation and successful alignment with the 
philosophy of the Company. 
 
• To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory 
notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable. 
 
• To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties. 
 
APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT 
 
a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for 
appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend his / her appointment, as per Company’s 

Interview and Selection procedure. 
 

1) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is considered 
for appointment. The Committee has authority to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience 
possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the position. 

 
2) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as the M.D or Whole-time Director 

or a manager who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this 
position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a 
special resolution. 

 
TERM / TENURE 
 
a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director: 
 
The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managing Director or Executive Director for a term not 
exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term. 
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Rotation: The Managing Director/Whole Time Director and other Non-Executive Directors of the Company shall be 
liable to retire by rotation subject to the employment agreement, if any signed between the company and such Directors 
of the Company at the time of appointment.  
 
Independent Director: 
 
An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and will 
be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in 
the Board’s report. 
 
No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of upto maximum of 5 years each, but 
such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an 
Independent Director. 
 
Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated 
with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly. 
 
Rotation: An Independent Director shall not be liable to retire by rotation pursuant to the provisions of sub-sections (6) 
and (7) of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on which such 
Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies 
as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other 
number as may be prescribed under the Listing Agreement. 
 
EVALUATION 
 
The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel yearly. 
 
REMOVAL 
 
The Committee may recommend with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management 
Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the Companies Act, 2013, rules and regulations. 
 
RETIREMENT 
 
The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act and the 
prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management 
Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the 
Company. 
 
POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS/KMP/SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 
 
1. Remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors: 
 
f) The Remuneration/ Commission etc. to be paid to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors, etc. shall be governed 

as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being 
in force and the approvals obtained from the Members of the Company. 

 
g) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations to the Board of Directors, as it 

may consider appropriate with regard to remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors. 
 
2. Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Directors: 
 
b) The Non-Executive / Independent Directors may receive sitting fees and such other remuneration as permissible 

under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be such as may be recommended by 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. 

 
c) All the remuneration of the Non-Executive / Independent Directors (excluding remuneration for attending meetings 



 PRIME INDUSTRIES LTD  

 
 
 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 
 

26 
 

as prescribed under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013) shall be subject to ceiling/limits as provided under 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force. The amount of 
such remuneration shall be such as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
approved by the Board of Directors or shareholders, as the case may be. 

 
d) An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and also shall not be eligible to participate in any 

share based payment schemes of the Company. 
 

e) Any remuneration paid to Non-Executive / Independent Directors for services rendered which are of professional in 
nature shall not be considered as part of the remuneration for the purposes of clause(b) above if the following 
conditions are satisfied: 

 
i. The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and 

 
ii. In the opinion of the Committee, the director possesses the requisite qualification for the practice of that profession. 

 
3. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management: 
 
a) The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed pay and incentive pay, 

in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the Company’s HR Policy. 
 
b) The Compensation Committee of the Company, constituted for the purpose of administering the Employee Stock 

Option/ Purchase Schemes, shall determine the stock options and other share based payments to be made to Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. 

 
c) The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, employer’s contribution to Provident Fund, contribution to 

pension fund, pension schemes, etc. as decided from to time. 
 
d) The Incentive pay shall be decided based on the balance between performance of the Company and performance of 

the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided annually. 
 

IMPLEMENTATION 
 
 The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in supplement and for 

better implementation of this policy as considered appropriate. 
 The Committee may Delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members. 
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DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND 
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014. 
 

(i)  The ratio of the remuneration of the Managing Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for 
the financial year was 0.00:1.No other Director of the Company is being paid any remuneration. 
 

(ii)  The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company 
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year. 

 
Sr. 
No 

Name of Director/KMP and 
Designation. 

% increase in Remuneration in the Financial Year 
2018-19 

1. 
Mr. Rajinder Kumar Singhania 
(Managing Director/KMP) 

 
Nil 

 

 
2. 
 

Ms. Jasleen Kaur Bath 
(Company Secretary) 
 

Nil 

 
3. 
 

Mr. Kashmir Singh 
(Chief Financial Officer) 

75.70% 

 
(iii) the percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year  –Not applicable. 
 
(iv) As on 31st March, 2019, the Company has 3 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company 
 
(v) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 

financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and 
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration - Not applicable. 
 

(vi) Affirmed that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NIL
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Compliance Certificate by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer: 
 
Pursuant to 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015, we hereby certify that: 
 
a. We have reviewed the financial statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 31.03.2019 and that to the 

best of our knowledge and belief: 
 

I. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading; 

 
II.   These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with 

existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or violativeof the Company's Code of Conduct. 

 
c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated 

the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the 
auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are 
aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 
d. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee: 
 

I. significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
 

II. significant changes in accounting policies during the year, if any, and that the same have been disclosed in the notes 
to the financial statements; and 

 
III. that no instances of significant fraud have come to our notice. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
Place: Ludhiana 
Date: 14.08.2019 

 
 
 
 

   

 
FOR PRIME INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 
Sd/- 

(R. K. Singhania) 
Managing Director 

DIN – 00077540 
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 CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT OF THE COMPANY 
 

This is to state that the Company had duly adopted a Code of Conduct. After adoption of the Code of Conduct, the same 
was circulated to all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel for compliance. It is affirmed that all the 
Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have complied with the Code of Conduct and have given a 
confirmation in this regard. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
Place: Ludhiana 
Date: 14.08.2019 

 
 
 
 

   

 
FOR PRIME INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 
Sd/- 

(R. K. Singhania) 
Managing Director 

DIN – 00077540 
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2019 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the  

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
 
The Members, 
Prime Industries Limited, 
Master Chambers, 19,  
Feroze Gandhi Market, Ludhiana-141001, 
Punjab (India). 
CIN: L15490PB1992PLC012662 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Prime Industries Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 
my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the 
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory 

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019, to the extent applicable and according to the provisions of: 
 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 
 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
 
(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(‘SEBI Act’):— 
 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
(b) SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 and SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015; 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 and 

amendments from time to time 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 

Guidelines, 1999 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 
2014; 

 (e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and 
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 
 
vi) We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with laws relating to, inter alia: 
 
-     All labour laws; 
- Securities and Exchange Board of India (Stock Brokers and Sub-Brokers) Rules, 1992 
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India to the extent of its applicability. 
(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited read with SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.  
 
We further report that 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. No changes in the composition of the Board of Directors took place during the 
period under review. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 
All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously or by the majority as recorded in 
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
We further report that during the audit period the Company has following specific events/actions having a major bearing 
on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. as detailed 

below:- 
 
The company had applied to the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited for voluntary delisting and the said application is still 
pending for want of approval.  

 
Sd/- 
Rajeev Bhambri & Associates 
Company Secretary in whole time practice                                                                                               
C.P. No. 9491 
 
Place: Ludhiana                                                          
Dated: 30.05.2019   
 
Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE A’ and forms an 

integral part of this report. 
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‘ANNEXURE A’ 

To, 
 
The Members, 
Prime Industries Limited, 
Master Chambers, 19,  
Feroze Gandhi Market, Ludhiana-141001, 
Punjab (India). 
CIN: L15490PB1992PLC012662 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

2. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company 
as we have relied upon the Audit done by Statutory Auditors as required under Companies Act, 2013.  

3. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc. 

4. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

5. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 
Sd/- 
Rajeev Bhambri & Associates 
Company Secretary in whole time practice                                                                                               
C.P. No. 9491 
 
Place: Ludhiana                                                          
Dated: 30.05.2019  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To 
The Members of  
Prime Industries Ltd 

We have audited the financial statements of Prime Industries Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance 

sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true 

and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) rules, 2015, as amended, ("IND AS') and other accounting  principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and its profit, total 
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended as on that date. 

Basis for opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities 

for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics.We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit  opinion. 

Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined that there is no key audit matter to communicate in our report. 

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included  in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including 

Annexures to Board’s Report,  Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the 

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. Since the other information has not been made available to us, we shall no be able 
to comments on this aspect. 

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements 

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016, as amended from 
time to time, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with (Standards on Auditing ('SAs'), we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls 
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 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters 
communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of 

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in Annexure “A” a statement on 

the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books; 

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss,and other comprehensive income, the statement of change in 
equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian accounting Standard (Ind AS) specified 
under section 133 of the Act. 
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the 
board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an 

unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over 

financial reporting; 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 

section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with 
the provisions of section 197 of the Act; and 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us; 

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements - Refer Note 18 to the financial statements.  

 
(ii) The Company did not have any outstanding long-term contracts including  derivative contracts as at 31 

March, 2019 for which there were any material foreseeable losses: and 
 

(iii)  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: Ludhiana 
Date:  30.05.2019 

For Sukhminder Singh & Co. 
       Chartered Accountants 

FRN 016737N  
 

Sd/-     
                            Sukhminder Singh 

Partner.  
    Membership No. 93100 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of 
even date) 

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including  quantitative details 
and situation of fixed assets. 

  (b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year at reasonable intervals 
and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification. 

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the 
Company. 

2.   The inventory, which are held in dematerialized/ physical form, has been verified at reasonable intervals by 
the management and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification. 

3. The Company has  granted unsecured loans to one party covered in the register maintained under section 189 of 
the Act.  

a) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the loans had been granted to the 
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act were not prima facie, prejudicial to the 
interest of the Company.                      

 
b)  In the case of the loan granted to the parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act, 

the borrowers have been regular in the payment of the interest as stipulated. The terms of arrangements do not 
stipulate any repayment schedule and loans are repayable on demand. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company in respect of the principal amount. 

 
c) There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loans granted to the parties covered in the register maintained 

under section 189 of the Act. 
 
4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has complied with 

the provisions of Section 185 read with section 186 and section 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and 
advances made. 

 
5. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with 

the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act or any 
other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder with regard to deposits accepted from the 
public. We have been informed that no order has been passed by Company Law Board or National Company 
Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal in this regard..  

 
 
 
 

37



 PRIME INDUSTRIES LTD  

 
 
 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 
 

 
6. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, 

for any of the services rendered by the Company. 
 

7. (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the record of the Company, the Company has generally been regular in depositing with 
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, investor protection 
fund ,wealth tax, GST, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of 
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues applicable to it.  

    According to the information and explanations given to us , no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of provident fund, investor protection fund ,wealth tax, GST,employees’ state 

insurance, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value 
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues applicable to it were in arrears as at 31 March, 
2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 
(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, 

sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise ,investor protection fund ,wealth tax, 
GST,and value added tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

 
8. Based on our audit procedures and  as per the information and  explanations given by the management, 

we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a 
financial institution, bank or government . 

9.  The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

10. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or any 
fraud on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of 
our audit. 

11. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

12.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a 
nidhi company. Accordingly paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188  of 
Companies Act 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

14. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of share or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the yearunder review and therefore, the provisions of 
clause 3(xiv) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,2016 are not applicable to the Company.   

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 
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16. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the company, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: Ludhiana 
Date:  30.05.2019 

For Sukhminder Singh & Co. 
       Chartered Accountants 

FRN 016737N  
 

Sd/-     
                            Sukhminder Singh 

Partner.  
    Membership No. 93100 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Prime Industries Ltd (‘the Company’) as 

of 31 March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS  financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting ('the 
Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 

based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 

deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects.  

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system on financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over 

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and  

(3)provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 
March, 2019 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: Ludhiana 
Date:  30.05.2019 

For Sukhminder Singh & Co. 
       Chartered Accountants 

FRN 016737N  
 
     

Sd/- 
                            Sukhminder Singh 

Partner.  
    Membership No. 93100 
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Rs.in Lacs

Note  As at  31st March,2019  As at  31st March,2018 

ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a) Computer, Furniture & Equipments 2 0.25                                         0.29                                         
(b) Investment Property 306.56                                     306.56                                     
(c) Financial assets

Investments 3 299.44                                     617.91                                     
(d) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 4 0.57                                         0.48                                         
(e) Other non-current assets 5 12.31                                       12.37                                       

Total non-current assets 619.13                                     937.61                                     
2 Current assets

(a) Inventories 6 118.05                                     120.39                                     
(b) Financial assets

Cash and cash quivalents 7 4.04                                         33.67                                       
Loans 8 62.26                                       126.94                                     

(c) Other current assets 9 23.85                                       326.83                                     
Total current assets 208.20                                     607.83                                     
TOTAL 827.33                                     1,545.44                                  

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 10

(a) Equity share capital 786.34                                     786.34                                     
(b) Other equity (99.94)                                      208.04                                     

Total equity 686.40                                     994.38                                     
Liabilities

1 Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

Short term borrowings 11 -                                           74.22                                       
(b) Other current liabilities 12 140.93                                     476.84                                     

Total current liabilities 140.93                                     551.06                                     
TOTAL 827.33                                     1,545.44                                  

Summary of significant accounting policies 1

As per our Report of even date
For Sukhminder Singh & Co For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 016737N Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- R. K. Singhania Harjeet Singh Arora
Managing Director Director

(Sukhminder Singh) DIN-00077540 DIN-00063176
Partner
Membership Number 93100 Sd/- Sd/-
Ludhiana, Jasleen Kaur Bath Kashmir Singh
30.05.2019 Company Secretary Cheif Financial Officer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial 
statements

        Balance Sheet as at  31st March, 2019

Particulars
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Rs.in Lacs

Note  For the year ended
March 31, 2019 

 For the year ended
March 31, 2018 

Revenue from operations 13 84.94                                       114.55                                     
Other income

I. Total income 84.94                                       114.55                                     
II. Expenses :

Employee benefit expense 14 18.11                                       11.93                                       
Finance cost 15 31.48                                       72.93                                       
Depreciation and amortization expense 2 0.04                                         0.20                                         
Other expenses 16 24.30                                       19.20                                       
Total expenses 73.93                                       104.26                                     

III. Profit before tax (I-II) 11.01                                       10.29                                       
IV. Tax expense:

Current tax (MAT) 0.61                                         1.95                                         
Income tax relating to earlier year
Deferred tax (0.09)                                        (0.15)                                        
Total of tax expenses 0.52                                         1.80                                         

V. Profit for the period (III-IV) 10.49                                       8.49                                         
VI. Other Comprehensive Income

A Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(318.47)                                    363.28                                     

B Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Total Other Comprehensive Income (Net) (318.47)                                    363.28                                     

VII. Total comprehensive income for the period (V+VI) (307.98)                                    371.77                                     
Earnings per share (RS.)
Basic - Par value of Rs 10 per share 0.14                                         0.11                                         
Diluted - Par value of Rs 10 per share 0.14                                         0.11                                         

Summary of significant accounting policies 1

As per our Report of even date
For Sukhminder Singh & Co For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 016737N Sd/- Sd/-

R. K. Singhania Harjeet Singh Arora
Sd/- Managing Director Director
(Sukhminder Singh) DIN-00077540 DIN-00063176
Partner
Membership Number 93100 Sd/- Sd/-
Ludhiana, Jasleen Kaur Bath Kashmir Singh
Date:-30.05.2019 Company Secretary Cheif Financial Officer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial 
statements

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Particulars

Remeasurement of the Shares
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A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit/Loss() before tax and extraordinary items 11.01               10.29               
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.04                 0.20                 
Provision for Dimunition in Value of Investment - -
Reversal of Revaluation Reserves - -
Interest Paid 31.48               72.93               

31.52               73.13               

Operating profit before working capital changes 42.53               83.42               
Changes in working capital:

Inventories 2.34                 (4.90)               
Trade receivables -                  -                  
Short-term loans and advances 64.68               546.83             
Other Current Assets 302.98             (265.50)           

Long-term loans and advances 0.06                 (8.22)               

Short trm borrowing (74.22)             (1,070.83)        
           Other current liabilities (335.91)           204.02             
Cash flow from extraordinary items (40.07)             (598.60)           
Cash generated from operations 2.46                 (515.18)           

(0.61)               (1.95)               
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 1.85                 (517.13)           

B. Cash flow from investing activities
-                  -                  

Sale of investment -                  578.48             
Sale of Property -                  28.20               
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (B) -                  606.68             
C. Cash flow from Financing activities
Interest Paid (31.48)             (72.93)             

(29.63)             16.62               

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 33.67               17.05               

4.04                 33.67               

As per our Report of even date
For Sukhminder Singh & Co For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 016737N Sd/- Sd/-

R. K. Singhania Harjeet Singh Arora
Sd/- Managing Director Director
(Sukhminder Singh) DIN-00077540 DIN-00063176
Partner
Membership Number 93100 Sd/- Sd/-

Ludhiana, Jasleen Kaur Bath Kashmir Singh
Date:-30.05.2019 Company Secretary Cheif Financial Officer

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March, 2019

For the year ended 
31st March, 2018

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019
Rs.in Lacs

Purchase of Investment

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Net Increase/(decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Net income tax (paid) / refunds
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Note No.1                        

Significant Accounting Policies 
A.     Basis of Preparation 

Thee financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Notified 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 20139 ("ActT")the historical cost convention on the accrual basis 
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies 
Act , 2013 (`Act') (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

The company has adopted Ind AS with April 1, 2017 as the transition date and the adoption was carried out 
in accordance with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried 
out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP.  

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (''INR'') and all values are rounded to the nearest 
lakhs, except otherwise indicated. 

 

B.     Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of 
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
period. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and 
subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements. Accounting estimates could 
change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in 
estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. 
Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if 
material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

 
C. Assets 

On adoption of Ind AS the company retained the carrying value of all the fixed assets  as recognized in 
financial statement as at the date of  transition to Ind AS measured as per previous GAAP and used that as 
deemed cost as permitted by Ind AS 101. 

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The 
costs of acquisition including taxes, duties and other direct and indirect expenses incidental to acquisition 
and installation/construction.directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property,  

Depreciation on fixed assets  is provided over the useful life of assets as specified in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013 except. 

Fixed assets which are added/ disposed off during the year, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with 
reference to the month of addition/deletion. The company depreciates fixed  assets over their estimated useful lives 
using the straight-line method. 

 
D.  Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are amortized 
over useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are available for use 

 
E. Impairment of Assets 

The company is making an assessment whether any indication exists that an asset has been impaired at the  
end of the year. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss i.e. the amount by which the carrying 
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amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount is provided in the books of accounts. 
 

F. Investments 

All the equity investments are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, with value changes recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss, except for those equity investments for which the entity has elected to present 
value changes in ''other comprehensive income''. 

If an equity investment is not held for trading, an irrevocable election is made at initial recognition to measure it 
at fair value through other comprehensive income with only dividend income recognised in the statement of 
profit and  loss 

 
G. Inventories 

Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. 

 

H.   Revenue Recognition 

The company follows the mercantile system of accounting and recognizes profit or loss on that basis 

 

I. Employee Benefits 

 The Company has provided the provision for the gratuity and charges to revenue. Provident /Pension Fund are  
not applicable. 

  

J. Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of 
such assets, up to the date when such assets are ready for intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged as 
expenditure in the year in which they are incurred. The capitalization of borrowing costs to be suspended 
during extended periods in which active developments will be interrupted. 
 

K. Accounting for Taxes on      
Current Tax 
Current Tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period after 
considering tax allowances & exemptions as determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax 
1961 
Deferred Tax 
Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising on account of timing difference and which are capable of reversal 
in subsequent periods, are recognized using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. 

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized and carried forward only if there is a virtual certainty that they will be  
realized and are reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying values at each Balance Sheet date. 

 
L. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets 

Contingent liabilities, if material, are disclosed by way of notes, contingent assets are not recognized or 
disclosed in the financial statements, A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as 
a result of past event(s} and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation(s}, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made for the amount of 
obligation 

 
M. Earnings per share 

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company by 
the weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by 
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary equity shareholders and the weighted average number 
of ordinary equity shares, for the effects of all dilutive potential Ordinary shares 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 Computer, Furniture & Equipments Rs.in Lacs

Computer  Furniture  & 
Fixture  Office Equipments Total

Gross carrying value:-
As at April 01, 2018 0.66                        7.22                        16.61                      24.49                      
Additions
Disposals
As at March 31, 2019 0.66                        7.22                        16.61                      24.49                      

Depreciation:-
As at April 01, 2018 0.63                        6.97                        16.60                      24.20                      
Charge for the year 0.04                        0.00                        0.04                        
Disposals
As at March 31, 2019 0.63                        7.01                        16.60                      24.24                      

Net carrying value:-
As at March 31, 2018 0.03                        0.25                        0.01                        0.29                        
As at March 31, 2019 0.03                        0.21                        0.01                        0.25                        

Note 3 Investments

 As at  31st 
March,2019 

 As at  31st 
March,2018 

215.78                    534.25                    

83.66                      83.66                      

299.44                    617.91                    

Note 4 Deferred tax:

Particulars  As at  31st 
March,2019 

 As at  31st 
March,2018 

Deferred tax assets -
Opening 0.48                        0.34                        
Expenses Allowable on Payment Basis 0.11                        0.12                        
Differnece in Carrying Amount of Fixed Assets (0.02)                       0.02                        
Closing 0.57                        0.48                        

Rs.in Lacs

Particulars  As at  31st 
March,2019 

 As at  31st 
March,2018 

11.08                      11.14                      

Security Deposit 1.23                        1.23                        
Total 12.31                      12.37                      

Note 5 Other Non Current Assets

Advance income tax (net of provision for tax)

178000  (As at 31 March 2018: 178000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each in Eminent Buildwell P Ltd

Particulars

Investment in equity instruments  (Quoted at Fair Value)

593598 (As at 31 March 2018: 593598) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up in Master 
Trust Ltd.

of other entities (Unquoted)

Particulars
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Rs.in Lacs

Particulars  As at  31st 
March,2019 

 As at  31st 
March,2018 

Stock-in-trade (acquired for trading) 118.05            120.39            
Total 118.05            120.39            

Particulars  As at  31st 
March,2019 

 As at  31st 
March,2018 

Cash in hand 0.03                0.00                
Cheques in hand 3.53                -                  
Balances with banks 0.48                33.67              
In current accounts

Total 4.04                33.67              

Particulars  As at  31st 
March,2019 

 As at  31st 
March,2018 

Loans To related Parties Unsecured, considered good 61.60              106.43            
Other Loans 0.66                20.51              

Total 62.26              126.94            

Note 9 Other Current Assets  Rs.in Lacs 

Particulars  As at  31st 
March,2019 

 As at  31st 
March,2018 

Advance against land                    - 293.00            
Other Recoverable 23.85              33.83              

Total 23.85              326.83            

Note 8 Loans

Note 6 Inventories

Note 7 Cash and cash equivalents 
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Note 10 Equity Share Capital Rs.in Lacs

Particulars  As at  31st 
March,2019 

 As at  31st 
March,2018 

Authorised 

8000000 Equity Share of Rs.10/- eash(8000000 Equity shares 
of Rs.10/- each as at 31st march 2019 and Ist April 2018)              800.00              800.00 

Issued 

7900000 Equity Share of Rs.10/- each(79000000 Equity share 
of Rs.10/- each as at 31st March 2018 and Ist April 2017)              790.00              790.00 

Subscribed and Fully paid up 

7826700 Equity Share of Rs.10/- each(7826700 Equity share of 
Rs.10/- eachas at 31st March 2018 and Ist April 2017)              782.67              782.67 

Subscribed but not Fully paid up 
73300 Equity Share of Rs.10/- eash(73300 Equity share of 
Rs.10/- each as at 31st march 2018 and ist April 2017)                  3.67                  3.67 

Total              786.34              786.34 

10.1 Movements in Equity Share Capital
Reconcilation of the Equity Shares Outstanding

Name of the Share Holders

 Number of 
Shares Held   %/ of Holding 

 Number of 
Shares Held   %/ of Holding 

Balance at the beging of  the year 7,900,000                    786.34 7,900,000                    786.34 
Changes in the equity share capital during the year -                  -                  -                  
Balance at the closing of the reported period 7,900,000                    786.34 7,900,000                    786.34 

Name of the Share Holders

 Number of 
Shares Held   % of Holding 

 Number of 
Shares Held   % of Holding 

Master Trust Ltd - - - -
Master Capital Service Ltd - - - -
Shambuka Agro Pvt Ltd - - - -
Rajinder Kumar Singhania 1,695,902       21.47              1,695,902       21.47              
Harneesh Kaur Arora 1,328,200       16.81              1,328,200       16.81              
Convexity solution and Advisores Private Ltd. 414,000          5.24                414,000          5.24                
G.S Auto Leasing Ltd. 407,900          5.16                407,900          5.16                
Shivlik Securites Ltd. 628,192          7.95                628,192          7.95                
Saintco India (P) Ltd 500,000          6.33                500,000          6.33

 As at  31st March,2019  As at  31st March,2018 

10.3   Calls unpaid by others Rs5/- per share (As at 31st March 2018 Rs.5/- per share)

10.3   Detail of share holders Holding more than  5% shares

 As at  31st March,2019  As t  31st March,2018 

10.2 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each share holder is eligible for one vote per share.
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(b) Other Equity Rs.in Lacs
Particulars  Other 

Comprehensiv Capital  
Reserve 

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Other items 
of other 

comprehensive 
 income 

Balance as at April 1, 2017                92.49            (187.99)              (95.03) (190.53)           
Profit for the year  -                  8.49  - 8.49                
Other comprehensive income for the year  -                26.80  - 26.80              
Total comprehensive income for the year  -  -              363.28 363.28            
Balance as at March 31, 2018 92.49              (152.70)           268.25            208.04            
Profit for the year -                  10.49              -                  10.49              
Other comprehensive income for the year -                  -                  (318.47)           (318.47)           
Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at March 31, 2019 92.49              (142.21)           (50.22)             (99.94)             

Note 11 Short -Term Borrowings
Particulars  As at  31st 

March,2019 
 As at  31st 
March,2018 

Loans and advance from related parties    
Unsecured -                  -                  
Other loans and advances
Unsecured -                  74.22              
Total -                  74.22              

Particulars  As at  31st 
March,2019 

 As at  31st 
March,2018 

Statutory Dues 3.17                7.29                
Other Liabilities 137.76            469.55            

Total 140.93            476.84            

Note 13 Revenue from operations
Particulars

 For the Year 
Ended  31st 
March,2019 

 For the Year 
Ended  31st 
March,2018 

Income from Sale Purcahse of Securities/Land/Others 20.56              12.53              
Interest Income 33.04              101.73            
Dividend 5.94                -                  
 Lease Rent & Other Income 25.40              0.29                
Total 84.94              114.55            

Note 12 Other Current  Liabilities

Reserve & Surplus

Total
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Note 14 Employee benefits expenses Rs.in Lacs
Particulars

 For the Year 
Ended  31st 
March,2019 

 For the Year 
Ended  31st 
March,2018 

Salary,Wages , Other Allownses & Gratuity 18.11              11.87              
(Including Directors Remuration Rs.Nil 
Previous year Rs.60000)
Staff Wellfare Exp                  - 0.06                

Total 18.11              11.93              

Note 15 Finance costs

Particulars
 For the Year 
Ended  31st 
March,2019 

 For the Year 
Ended  31st 
March,2018 

Interest expense on:
Borrowings 31.48              72.92              
Other borrowing costs
- Bank Charges 0.00                0.01                

Total 31.48              72.93              

Note 16 Other expenses
Particulars

 For the Year 
Ended  31st 
March,2019 

 For the Year 
Ended  31st 
March,2018 

Printing & Stationery 0.44                0.54                
Travelling & Conveyance 0.18                0.10                
Legal & Professional Charges 15.28              1.12                
Postage & Telegram,Telephone & Telex 1.85                1.22                
Insurance Charges 0.10                0.10                
Other General Exp 6.15                15.89              
Payment to Auditors
      As auditors - statutory audit 0.25                0.20                
      For taxation matters 0.05                0.03                

Total 24.30              19.20              
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

17.    Corporate Information 
Prime Industries Liminted (the Company) is a public company  and is incorporated under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, applicable in India. Its shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange .  The registered office 
of the company is located at Master Chambers, 19, Feroze Gandhi Market  Ludhiana, Punjab. 
    

  18.    Contingent liabilities 
(a) Balance of Sundry Debtors, creditirs, loans & advances are subject to confirnation and reconciliation if any 
(b) The Company has filed legal cases against debtors/advances of Rs.37.00 lacs for recovery  of outstanding 
amounts. No provision has been considered necessary , since in the  opinion of management these debts are 
recoverable. 
(c) The Company is involved in other small legal proceedings for  claims related to the ordinary course of its 
business. In respect of theses claims, the company believes, theses claims do not constitute material litigation 
matters  and with its meritorious defence the ultimate disposition of these matter will not have material 
adverse effect on its financial statements. In view of the management and the legal advise sought, no provision 
is required to be made in case litigation against/by the company. Therefore, provision for the same has not 
been provided in the books of accounts 
 

   19.   In  the opinion of  the Board, all the current assets, Loans & advances  having  the   value on  realization   in 
the   ordinary course of  business   at  least  equal  to the amount at  which they are stated except as expressly 
stated otherwis 

   20.   Income from Sales,Purchase of Securities,Land,Others include , Income from Investment in Land Rs.Nil-  
(Preivious Year Rs.20.19/--), Profit/(Loss) on Securites, Shares/Derivatives Trading Rs.20.56 (Previouse 
Year( Rs.8.00- )) . Provision for Diminution in Investments of RsNil. (previous year Rs.26.80/-) is reversed 
directly to Reserve & Surplus as the same was prveiously not charged in Profit &  Loss Account 

   21.   Detail of Investments covered under the provision of Section 186 of the Act, are given in the note No.3 to the 
Financial Statement 

   22.  The company is primarily engaged in Real Estate and allied activities and there are no separate reportable 
segments as per  Accounting Standard (AS) 17 on "Segment Reporting". 

   23.   Related party transactions 
As required by AS-18, Related Party Disclosures, are given Below 
Associates/Enterprises owned or significantly                     Key Management personal                    
Influenced by the key management personnel                      and their relatives. 
Or their relatives. 
Master Trust Ltd.                                                                                   Mr.R.K Singhania 
Master Capital Services Ltd.                                                                Mr. Harjeet Singh Arora 
Master Commodity Services Ltd.                                                         Mr.Ashwani Kumar 
Master Share & Stock Brokers Ltd.                                                      Mr. Darshanjit Singh Manocha 
Master Insurance Brokers Ltd.                                                             Mr. Rajive Kalara 
MTL Capital Consultants Pvt. Ltd.                                                        Mr.Puneet Singhania 
Prime Agro Farms Ltd.                                                                           Mr.Chirag Singhania 
Big Build Real Estate Pvt. Ltd                                                               Mt.Jashanjot Singh Arora 
Amni Real Estate Pvt. Ltd.                                                                    Mrs. Parveen Singhania 
Matria Estate Developers Pvt. Ltd                                                        Mrs. Rohila SInghania 
Eminent Buildwell Pvt Ltd.                                                                    Mrs. Harneesh Kaur Arora 
H.K Arora Real Estates Services Ltd                                                   Mrs. Palka A Chopra 
Saintco India (P) Ltd.                                                                             Mrs. Harinder Kaur Manocha 
Singhania Properties                                                                             Mrs. Priyanka Arora 
Cresent Investments                                                                            Mrs. Isha Singhania 
Blue Circle Investments                                                                      
Sanawar Investments 

50 52



 

 PRIME INDUSTRIES LTD  

 
 
 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 
 

 

 
 

Transactions with related parties 
                                                                                                                                                         Rs.in Lacs 

 
Particulars 
 

Associates KMP Relatives 
of KMP 

Total 

Interest Earned  32.79  -     -     32.79 

  (77.55)  -     -     (77.55) 
Remuneration   -     -  -     - 

  -     (0.60)  -     (0.60) 
Balances outstanding at the end of the year     

Loan & Advances taken   -                         -     -     -    
  (475.49)  -     -     (475.49) 

Loan & Advances given 61.60   61.60 

  (106.42)                     (106.42)                   
Other Trade payables -                        - -  -    
           -            -   - 

 
24. Deferred tax (lAssets)  

 

    Particulars As at 31 March, 2019 As at 31 March, 2018 

Opening Balance 0.48 
0.34 
 

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax Assets   

Expenses Allowable on Payment Basis 0.11 0.12 

Difference in Carrying Amount of Fixed Assets (0.02) 
0.02 
 

Net deferred tax (Assets)  
0.57 
 

0.48 

  25.  Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with  the current      
year's classification/disclosure 

 
As per our Report of even date    

For Sukhminder Singh & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FIrm Registration Number 016737N 

For and on behalf of the Board 

    
    
          Sd/-  
Sukhminder Singh  
Partner  
Membership Number 93100 
 

Sd/- 
(R.K. Singhania) 
Managing Director 
DIN – 00077540 

Sd/- 
(Harjeet Singh Arora) 

Director 
DIN – 00063176 

 
Place: Ludhiana  
Date:  30.05.2019 

Sd/- 
(Jasleen Kaur Bath)  

Company Secretary 

Sd/- 
(Kashmir Singh) 

Cheif Financial Officer 
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